UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

B REGION 4
3 ATLANTA FEDERAL CENTER
3 S 81 FORSYTH STREET
"2, ey ATLANTA, GEGHRGIA 3030345680

FEB 16 2012

VIA CERTIFIED MATL
RETURN EIPT REQUEST

Barry M. Reynolds
Chief Financial Officer
Sumter Coatings, Inc.
2410 Highway 15 South
Sumter, 8C 2913006596

Re:  Sumter Coatings, Inc.
Consent Agreement and Final Order, Docket Number: RCRA-04-2012-400 L (h}

Dear Mr. Reynolds:

Enclosed is a copy of the fully excented Consent Agreement and Final Order (CA/FO) as filed with the
Regtonal Hearing Clerk (RHC) in the above referenced matter. The CA/FO was effective upon filing
with the RHC and payment of the ¢ivil penalty is to be paid in accordance with the following schedule,
calculated from the etfective date:

$6,935.23 within thirty (30) calendar days of the effective date of this CA/FG
$6,935.23 on or before April 13, 2012

£6,935.23 on or before July {3, 2012

$6,935.23 on or before Qciober 15, 2012

$6.935.23 on or before January {5, 2013

56,035.23 on or hefore April 15, 2013

£6,935.23 on or before July 15, 2013

$6,935.23 on or hefore October 15, 2013

¢ & & & & % & A

In acddition to the payment of a civil ponadty, the CA/FO also requires Sumter Coatings, Ine. (Sumter) (0
develop 2 personned iTaining program consistent with the requirements described in 8.C. Code Ann.
Regs. 61-72.265.16 {40 C.F R, § 265.16], w develop a schedule for implementation of the personnel
training program and to identify which fzeility omployees require training. Lastly, within sixty (60) days
of the etfoctive date of the CAFO, a representative of the commpany must submit a sipned certification
statement to the U.5. Envirenmental Protection Agency, care of Larry Lamberth, at the address below:

Larry L. Lamberth, Chief

South Section, RCRA & OPA Enforcement und Compliance Branch
RERA Division

LLS, BPA - Region 4

61 Forsyth Streef, S.W.

Atlanta, Georgia 30303-3960

tntatnat Addresy {URLE « htipferaw opa.goy
HecyclmiRacyainhis « Prnled wah Vegelable O Dased inks on Fooydsy Papsr nimum 35% Posiconsumnarn)
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Also enclosed is g copy of a document titied “Notice of Securities and Exchange Commission
Registrants’ Duty to Disclose Environmental Legal Proceedings,” This document puts Susiter on notice

of its potential duty to disclose to the Secunities and Exchange Commission any environmental actions
taken by the EPA.

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact Nacha Dixit, Assistant Regional Counsed, at
{404} 302-9441.

Sincerely

(o e

Cdésar Zapata, Chief

RURA and OPA Enforcement and Complisnce Branch
RCRA Division

Enclosures
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CONSENT AGREEMENT

LNATURE OF THE ACTION

This is a ¢ivil administrative enforcement action, ordering compliance with the requirements of
the South Carolina Hazardous Waste Management Act, 5.C. Code Ann. § 44-56-10 gt geq., the
South Carolina Poflution Control Act, 8.C. Code Ann. § 48-1-10 gt seq., [collectively, Subtitle C
of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RURA), 42 U.S.C. §§ 6921-69351], and the
South Carolina Hazardous Waste Management Regulations (SCHWMR) promulgated pursuant
thereto and set forth a1 8.C, Code Ani. Regs. 6179260 through 61-79.270 [Title 40 of the Caule
of Federal Regulations (C.F.R.}, Party 268 through 2707, This action seeks injunctive relief and
the imposition of civil penalties pursuant to Section 3008(a) of RCRA, 42 1.8.C. § 6928(a), for
viglations of 8.C. Code Ann. §§ 48-1-10 et s8q. and 44-536-30 ¢f seq. [Section 3603 of RCRA,
42 UB.C. §6925] and 8.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.260 through 61-79.270 {40 C.F.R. Parts 260

through 270].

The Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties
and the Revecation/Termination or Suspension of Permits, which govem this action and are
promulgated at 4G C.F.R. Part 22, provide that where the partics agree to settioment of one or
morg cguses of action before the filing of a complaint, a proceeding may be simultanecusly
commenced and concluded by the issuance of a Consent Agreement and Final Order (CA/FO),

40 C.F.R. §§ 22.13(b} and 2Z.18(b}2).

Complainant and Respondent have conferred for the purpose of setilement pursuant to

A0 CF.R. § 22.18 and desire to settle this action. Accordingly, before any testimony has been
taken upon the pleadings and without any admission of violation or adjudicativn of any issue of
fact or law and in accordance with 40 CF.R. § 22.13(b), Complainant and Respondent have
agreed to the execution of this CA/FQ, and Respondent hereby agrees to comply with the terms

of this CA/FQ.
I1. THE PARTIES

Complainant is the Chief, RCRA and OPA Enforcement and Compliance Branch, RCRA
Division, Region 4, United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).
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Respondent is Sumter Coatings, [nc., a vorporation incorporated under the laws of South
Carclina. The business is located at 2410 Highway 15 South, Sumter, South Carolina (Facility).

I[L. PRELIMINARY STATEMENTS

Pursuant to Section 3006¢(h) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(h), the South Carolina Department of
Health and Environmental Control (SCDHEC) received authorization o carry out a hazardous
waste program in lieu of the federal program set forth in RCRA. The requirements of the
authotized state program are found at the South Carolina Hazardous Waste Management Act,
8.C. Code Ann. § 44-56-10 et geq., the South Carolina Pollution Coatrol Act, 8.C. Code Ann,
% 48-1-100 ¢t seq., and the SCHWMR, S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.260 through 61-79 270,

Although the EPA has granted the State of South Carolina authority to enforce its own hazardous
waste program, the EPA retains jurisdiction and authority to initiate an independent enforcement
action pursuant to Section 3008(a)(2) of RCRA, 42 U.8.C. § 6928(aX2). This authority is
exercised by the EPA in the manoer set forth in the Memorandum of Agreement between the
EPA and the State of South Carolina.

As the authorized provisions of South Carolina’s hazardous waste program operate in lieu of the
Federal RCRA program, the citations for the violations of those autherized provisions alleged
herein will be to the authorized South Carolina program; however, for case of reference, the
federal citations will follow in brackets,

Pursaant to Section 3008(a)(2) of RCRA, 42 US.C. § 6928(a) 2}, Complainant has given notice
uf this action to the State of Scuth Carolina before issuance of this CNFQ‘

Section 44-56-30 of the South Carolina Code of Laws [Section 3002 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C.

§ 69227, requires the promulgation of standards applicable to generators of hazardous waste. The
implementing regulations for these standards are found in 8.C. Code Ann, Regs. 61.79.262

{40 C.FR. Part 262].

Section 44-56-60 of the South Carclina Code of Laws [Section 3003 of RCRA, 42 U.8.C.

$ 6925], sets forth the requirement that a facility treating, storing, or disposing of hazardous
waste must have a permif or interim status. The implementing regulations for this requirement
are found 8.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.264 et sey. and 61-29.265 ct seq. [40 C.F.R. Parts 264 and
265].

Pursuant to 8.C, Code Anan. Regs. 01-79.261.2 {40 C.FR. § 261.2], a “solid waste™ is any
discarded material that is not otherwise excluded from the regulations. A discarded material
includes any matenial that is abandoned by beiny stored in lieu of being disposed.

Pursuant to 8.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-70.261.3 [40 C.E.R. § 261.3], a solid waste is a “hazardous
waste” if it is not otherwise excluded from regulation as a hazardous waste by 8.C. Code Ann.
Regs. 61-79.261.4(b) {40 C.F.R. § 261 4(b)] und #t moets any of the criteria sei forth in 8.C.
Code Ann. Regs, 61-79.261.3{a}2) {40 C.F.R. § 261.3(a()L.
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Pursuant t¢ 8.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.261.3 [40 C.F.R. § 26].3], a solid waste ig o listcd
“hazardous waste” if it is listed i 8.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.261 Subpart D (40 CF.R. Part
261, Subpart D).

Pursuant to 8.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61.79.760.10 [40 C.F.R. § 260,10}, a “generator” is defined as
“any person, by site, whose act or process produces hazardous waste wdentified or listed in 261
[40 C.F.R. Pant 261], or whose act first causes a hazardous waste to become subject to
regulation.”

Pursuant to 8.C. Code Ann. Regs, $1-79.260.10 {40 C.F.R. § 260.10], a “facility” includes “all
contiguous land, and strucnures, other appurtenances, and improvernents on the tand, used for
freating, storing, or disposing of hazardous waste.”

Pursuant to $.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.260.1G [40 C.F.R. § 260.10], a “person” includes a
corporation.

Pursuant to 3.C. Code Ana. Regs. 61-79.200.10 (40 C.F.R. § 260.10], an “owner” ig “the person
who owns a facility or part of a facility” and an “operator™ iz “the person responsible for the
overall operation of a facility.”

Pursuant to 8.C, Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.261.3(a)(2)3) [40 C.FR, § 261.3(a}2)(1)] and S.C.
Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.261.21 [40 C.F.R. § 261.21], a solid waste that exhibits the characteristic
of {gnitability is a hazardous waste and is identified with the EPA Hazardous Waste Number
DoB1.

Pursuant to 8,.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.261.31{2) [40 C.F.R. § 261.31{a)), a solid waste is a
hazardous waste if it is listed in S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.261 Subpart D [40 C.F.R. Part 261,
Subpart D}, and is not otherwise excluded by 8.C, Code Ann. Regs. 61.76.260.20 or 8.C. Code
Aan. Regs, 61-79.264.22 {40 CF.R. §§ 260.20 or 260.22] and is Histed in Appendix [X
[Appendix K].

Pursuant to 3.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.261.31(a) (30 CF.R. § 261.31{a}}, non-halogenated
spent solvent wastes from non-specific sources which are listed for ignitability are identified
with the EPA Hazardous Waste Number F003, and pon-halogenated spent solvent wastes from
non-specific sourees which are listed for ignitability and toxicity are identified with the EPA
Hazardous Waste Number FOOS.

Pursuant to 8.C. Code Amn. Regs. 61.78.261.7(a}2) [40 C.F.R. § 261.%{a}X )], any hazardous
waste in a container that is oot empty, as defined by S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.261 7(b}

40 C.F.R. § 261.7(b)], is subject to regulation under $.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.261 through
266, 208, 124, and 270 [40 CT.R. Parts 261266, 268, 124, and 2701

Pursuant t0 5.C. Code Aon. Regs. 61-79.262.34(a) [40 C.F.R. § 262.34{2}), a generator of
greater than 1,000 kilograms of hazardous waste b a calendar month may accumulate hazardous
waste on-site for 20 days or less without a permit or without having interim status, as required by
Section 44-36-60 of the South Carolina Code of Laws [Section 3005 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C.
§ 6925], provided that the gencrator complies with the management requirements listed in
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$.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.262.34(a)( -{4} [40 C.F.R. § 262.34a)( [ )-(4)] (hereinatter referred
to as the “Large Quantity Generator Permit Exemption™).

Pursuant to 8.C. Code Anp, Regs. 61-79.262.34(a)3), a condition of the Large Quantity
Generator Permit Exemption requires a facility to label or clearly mark each container
accurmnulating hazardous waste on-site with the EPA Hazardous Waste Number(s) and the words:
“Hazardous Waste - Federal laws prohibit improper disposal.”

Pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.262.34(a)(2) [40 C.F.R. § 262.34(a}2}], a condition of
the Large Guantity Generator Permit Exemption requires a facility to ensure that the date upon
which each period of accumulation begins is cleatly marked and visible on cach container,

Pursuant to 8.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.262.34(a)(1)(i), which incorporates the requirements of
8.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.265.175(b)}{(1}, a condition of the Large Quantity Generator Permit
Exemption requires a facility to cnsure that a containment system is designed and operated as
follows; “A base must lie beneath the containers which s free of cracks or gaps and sufficiently
impervious to contain Jeaks, spifls, and sccumulated precipitation until the collected material is
detected and rornoved.”

Pursuant i 5.C. Code Ann, Regs. 61-79.262.34(a}4) [40 C.F.R. § 262.34(a}¥4)], which
incorporates the reyquirements of 5.C. Code Ann. Reps, 61-79.26531 [40 C.FR, § 265311, a
condition of the Large Quantity Generator Permit Exemption requires a fucility t0 be maintained
and operated 10 minimize the possibility of any unplanncd release of hazardous waste of
hazardous constituents to the air, soil, or surface water which could threaten human health or the
SRVIronMent.

Pursuant to $.C. Code Aan. Regs. §1-79.262.34(a)(4) [40 C.F.R. § 262.34(a)4)], which
mcorporates the requircments of $.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.265.35[40 C.F.R. § 26535}, a
condition of the Large Quantity Generator Permit Exemption requires the owner or operator of 8
facility to maintain aisle space to allow the unobstructed movement of personnel, fire protection
equipment, spill control equipment, and decontamination equipment {0 any area of facility
pperation i an emergency, unless it cun be demonsirated that aisle space is not needed for any of
these purposes.

Pursuant to S.C. Code Ann, Regs. 61-79.262.34(a) 131} [40 C.F.R. § 262.34(a)(1)(i)], which
incorporates the requirements of 8.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.265.173(a} [4A0CF R

§ 265.173a}}, a condition of the Large Quantity Generalor Permit Exemption requires a facility
to ensure that containers holding hazardous waste are always closed, excopt when it is necessary
to add or remove waste.

Pursuant to S.C, Code Ann, Regs. 61-79.262.34(a}1)(3) [40 C.E.R. § 262.34(a) 1 ¥i}], which
incorporates the requirements of $.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.265.174 [40 CF.R. § 265.174], a
condition of the Large Quantity Generator Permit Exemption requires the owner or operator of a
{acility to ingpect areas where containers of hazardous waste stored at least weekly. The owner or
operator must fook for leaking containers and for deterioration of containers and the containment
system caused by corrosion of other factors.
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Pursuant to 5.C, Code Ann. Regs, 61-79.262.34(a)(4}, which incorporates the requirements of
S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.263.15{d}, a condition of the Large {uantity Generator Permit
Exemption requires the owner or operator of a facility to record inspections in an inspection log
or summary. The owner or operator must keep these records af the faciiity for at least three years
from the date of inspection. At 2 minimum, these records must include the date and time of the
inspection, the name of the inspector, a potation of the observutions made, and the date and
nature of any repairs or other remedial actions.

Pursuant to 3.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.262 34(cy 1)1} [40 C.ER. § 262.34{c) 1)1}, s
condition for exemption from the requirement to obtain a permit or interim status provided in
Section 44-36-60 of the South Carolina Code of Laws [Section 3005 of RCRA, 42 US.C.

§ 6925] allows a facility to accumulate as much as 55 pallons of hazardous waste in contatners at
ot near any point of generation where wastes initially accurnulate (Satellite Accumuiation
Contziners} if the Satellite Accumulation Containers are under the control of the operator and the
vontainers are marked gither with the words “Hazardous Waste” or with other words that identily
the contents of the containers,

Pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.262.34(c)(1 }(i) [40 C.F.R. § 262.34(c)(1){(1}]. which
incorporates the requirements of $.C. Code Ann. Regs, 61-79.265.173(2) [40 C.F.R,

§ 263.173(a)}], & condition for exemption from the requirement to obtain a permit or intenim
status provided in Section #4-36-60 of the South Carolina Code of Laws [Section 3003 of
RCRA, 42 U.8.C, § 6925] allows a facility fo accurnulate Satellite Accumulation Containers if
the containers are under the control of the operator and the containers holding hazardous waste
are always closed, except when i is necessary 1o add or remove waste,

Pursuant to 3.C. Code Ann. Regs, 61-79.262.11 [40 CF.R. § 262.11], a person who geoerates a
solid waste nust dotermine if that waste is a hazardous waste. The regulation requires persons
who generate a solid waste, as defined in 8.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.261 2 40 CFR. § 261.2),
to determine f those wastes are hazardous wastes following the methods articulated in 8.C, Code
Anpi. Regs. 61-79.262.11 of the [40 CF.R. § 262111,

Pursuant to 8.C, Code Ann. Regs. $1-79.262.34(a¥4) {40 C.FR. § 262.34{a)(4)], which
incorporates the requirements of $.C. Code Ann. Regs, 81-79.265.16 [40 C.F.R. § 265.16], a
vondition of the Large Quantity Generator Pormit Exemption requires g facility to develop and
implement a complete personnel training program fo ensure compitance with hazardous waste
management regulations.

Pursuant fo 8.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-70.262.34(a)(4) [40 C.F.R. § 262.34(a)(4)], which
incorporates the requirements of 8.C, Code Ann. Regs. 61.79.265.52 [40 CF.R. § 265.52}, a
condition of the Large Quantity Generator Permit Exemption requires a facility to develop a
contingency plan that is designed to minimize hazards fo human health or the environment; to
deseribe n ifs contingency plan the facility’s arrangements with local awthorities {e.g., police,
fire, emergency response) for emergency services; and to list in its contingency plan the names,
addresses, and phone numbers of emergency coordinators.

Pursuant to 8.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.262.34{a)(4) [40 C.F R, § 262.34(a}4)}, which
incorporates the requirements of S.C. Code Ann. Regs, 61-79.265.33 [40 CFR. § 26553 a
condition of the Large Quantity Generator Permit Exemption requires a facility to maintain af the
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facility a copy of the contingency plan and to submit a copy of its contingency plan to all local
polive departments, fire departaients, hospitals, and State and local emergency response teams
that may be called upon to provide emergency services.

Pursuant to 8.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.262.34{a}4} {40 C.F.R. § 262.34(a)(4)], which
incorporates the requirements of S.C. Code Ann. Regs, 61-79.265.37 [40 C.F.R. § 265.37), a
condition of the Large Quantity Generator Permit Exemption requires a facility to attempt to
make arrangements with local authorities (i.e., police, fire departments, emergency response
teams, and hospitals) or to keep documentation of authorities’ refusal to enter into response
arrangements,

IV. EPA ALLEGATIONS AND DETERMINATIONS

Respondent is a "person” as defined in Section 48-1-10(1) of the South Carolina Code of Laws
{Section [004(13) of RCRA, 42 US.C, § 6903(15)] and 5.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.260.10
{40 CF.R. § 260.10).

Respondent is the Yowner/operator” of a “facility™ located in Sumnter, South Carolina, as those
terms are detined in 3.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.26010 40 C.F.R. § 260.10)

Respondent manufactures paints and coatings for primarily the steel and facm implement
manufacturing industries. Respondent blerds raw materials onsite to create custom formulations
at the Facility.

Respondent is a Large Quantity Generator of hazardous waste.

Respondent’s standard procedure is to rinse tanks that formerly contained solvent-hased paint
coatings with a solvent mixture that contains xylene, ketone, and toluene, The resulting spent
solvent or rinsate is referred to as Dty Wash. Respondent, as a result of s solvent rinsing
procedure, is a generator of DOGL, FOO3, and FOOS harzardous wastes.

Respondent’s standard procedure is to rinse tanks that formerly contained water-based coatings
with water. The water-based paint rinsate is referred to as Wash Water,

On April 14, 2610, inspectors from the EPA and the Bureau of Land and Waste Management,
South Carolina Department of Health and Environmental Control {SCDHEC) (hereinafier the
Inspectors) performed a RCRA Compliance Evaluation Inspection (CEI} of Respoudent’s
Facility, The findings of the CEI were documented in an EPA RURA CEl report, dated August
16, 2010 and a SCDHEC CEf Report, dated January 13, 2011 (collectively CEI Reports).

At the time of the CEl, the Inspectors observed nine {93 300-gallon steel containers (totes) stored
in # location in the Facility’s Outside Storage Arca. The nine totes formerly held a spent mixture
of xylene, ketone, and toluene solvent and paimt waste and were not entircly empty. According to
Facility personnel, the materisl remaining in the totes could cecupy as much as 10% by volume.

At the time of the CEJ the Inspectors observed that the following containers throughout the
Facility were not properly labeled:
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a. Sixteen (16) 330-gallon steel totes labeled a5 “hazardous waste” located in the
Facility's Hazardous Waste Storage Area were not labeled with EPA Hazardous
Waste Numbers,

b, Sixteen {16} 55-gallon containers of Dirty Wash accumulating in an area adjacent to
the mixing tanks on the southern end of the Facility were not labeled with the words
“hazardous waste,” were not marked with the required EPA Hazardous Waste
Numbers, and were not marked with an accumulation start date,

¢. Numerous containers of paint waste and spent solvent mixtures of xylene, ketone, and
toluene and a large oversized container utilized as a *5-gallon bucket wash™ holding
Dirty Wash located in the Facility's Dispersion Line Area were not labeled with the
words “hazardous waste” and were not marked with the required EPA Hazardous
Waste Numbers. Pleven (11} of the vontainers, including the 5-gallon bucket wash
gontainer, were not marked with an accumulation start date.

d. Fourteen {14} containers of hazardous waste located in the Facility’s
Shipping/Receiving Area were nof labeled with the words Phazardous waste,” were
not marked with the required EPA Hazardous Waste Numbers, and were not marked
with an accurnulation start date.

e. Nine {9} totes located in the Fuacility’s Outdoor Storage Area were labeled with the
words “hazardous waste,” were not marked with the required EPA Hazardous Waste
Nurabers, and were not marked with an accumulation start date.

The EPA therefore alleges Respondent violated Section 44-36-60 of the South Carolina Code of
Laws [Section 3005 of RCRA, 42 U.B.C. § 6925} for sloring hazardous waste without a permit or
interim status, because Respondent failed (o meet two conditions of the Large Quantity
Generator Permiit Exemption by not complying with $.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.262,34{(a}2)
and (3) {40 C.F.R. § 262.34(a¥2) and (3)].

At the time of the CEL the lnspectors observed that the floor of the Facility™s process building
was serving as the secondary containment tor: the Hazardous Waste Storage Ares; the storage
area wdjacent to the mixing tanks; the Dispersion Ling Arca; and the Shipping/Receiving Area,
The Inspectors also observed a concrete floor sump in the Faality's Hazardous Waste Storage
Area. Both the floor and the floor sump were constructed of concrete and were not adequately
sealed with a coating to be considered sufficiently impervious to contain leaks, spills, and
accumulated preciptiation until the cojlected material could be detected and removed, The lack
of impervions secondary containment increased the possibility of a fire, explosion, or an
unplanned sudden or non-sudden release of hazardous waste or huzardous constituents to the
environment,

At the ttime of the CEI, the Inspectors observed concrote floor drains in numerous locations
throughout the Facility’s Mixing Tank Arca. The floor drains were not adegquately seaked with
coating to be considered sufficiently impervious to contain leaks, spills, and sccumulated
precipitation until the collected material could be detected and removed. Furthermore, it was
unciear as to where the floor draing discharged any collected materials. The floor drains® lack of
impervious secondary containment and the ynclear discharge location increased the possibility of
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a fire, explosion, or an unplanned sudden or non-sudden release of hazardous waste or hazardous
constituents to the environment.

At the time of the CEl, the Inspectors ohserved that nine {9) fotes of hazardous waste were
located in the Quiside Storage Area, which had a gravel base and did not have sdequate
secondary containment. The gravel base wag not sufficiently impervious to contain leaks, spills,
and acournulated precipitation until the collected material could be detected and removed, The
lack of tmpervious secondary containment increased the possibility of a fire, explosion, or an
unplanned sudden or non-sudden release of hazardous waste or hazardous constituents to the
environment,

The EPA therefore alleges Respondent violated Section 44-56-60 of the South Carolina Code of
Laws [Section 3005 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6925] for storing hazardous wasie without a permit or
interim status, hecanse Respondent failed 1o meet 2 condition of the Large Quantity Generator
Permit Exemption in 8.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.262.34{a) 1 )}{1) by not complying with 5.C.
Cade Ann. Regs. 81-79,265.175(bK 1)

The EPA therefore alleges Respondent violatad Section 44-36-60 of the South Carolina Code of
Laws {Section 3005 of RCRA, 42 U.8.C. § 6925 for storing hazardous waste without a permit or
interim status, because Respondent failed to meet a condition of the Large Quantity Generator
Permit Exemption in 8.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.262.34(a)4) [40 C.F.R. § 262.34(a)(4)] by not
complying with 8.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.265.31 [40 C.FR. § 265.311.

At the time of the CEI, the Inspectors observed containers of hazardous waste in several
locations of the Facility that were not appropriately spaced to be safely inspected, or to allow the
unobstructed movement of personned, fire protection equipment, and/or spill control equipment
in case of an emergency.

The EPA thercfore alleges Respondent violated Section 44-56-80 of the South Carolina Code of
Laws [Section 3003 of RCRA, 42 US.C. § 6825] for storing hazardous waste without a permit or
interim status, because Respondent failed to meet 4 condition of the Large Quantity Generator
Permit Exemption in 8.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.262.34(a)}(4} [40 C.FR. § 262.34(a}{4)] by not
complying with §.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61.79.265.35 [40 C.F.R. § 265.35].

At the time of the CEI, the Inspectars observed numerous containers of hazardous waste that
were did not have lids and were open to the atmeosphere. These containers included:

a. Numerous containers of paint waste and spent solvent mixtures of xvlene, ketone, and
toluene and a large oversized container utilized as a “5-gallon bucket wash™ holding
Dirty Wash located in the Facility’s Dispersion Line Area,

b. Ome{l) 55-gallon drum with sludye like waste and dirty mop heads saturated with
solvent located in the Shipping/Receiving Area.

¢. At least three (3} totes of hazardous waste in the Quiside Storage Area.

The EPA therefore alleges Respondent violated Section 44-56-60 of the South Carolina Code of
Laws [Section 3005 of RCRA, 42 UB.C. § 69251 for storing hazardous waste without a permit or
intertin status, because Respondent failed o meet a condition of the Large Quantity Cenerator
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38.

64,

61,

62,

Permit Exemption in 8.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.262. 341 X1 {40 C.F.R. § 262.34(a)(1 }{1}]
by not complying with $.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.205.173(a) {40 C.F.R § 263.173(a)].

At the time of the CEL the Inspectors reviewed the Facility’s 2010 weekly inspection log. The
records failed o note the time of the weekly inspections, the same of the Facility's inspector, any
notations of vhservations made, and any deficiencics requiring remeshial action. The inspection
log failed to identify any additional hazardous waste contminers located outside of the Faality’s
less than Y0-day storage area. The hazardous waste containers that were not being inspecied
inchzde containers stored in areas such as the Outside Storage Ares, the Mixing Tank Area, and
the Shipping Receiving Ares, which all stored containers of hazardous waste.

The EPA therefore alleges Respondent violated Section 44-56-60 of the South Carolina Code of
Laws [Section 3005 of RCRA, 42 U .8.C. § 6925] for storing hazardous waste without a permit or
wterim status, because Respondent failed to meet 3 condition of the Large Quantity Generator
Permit Exemption in S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.262.34{a)(1)(i) [40 C.E.R. § 262.34(a) 1)(i)]
by not complying with 8.C. Code Ann, Regs. 61-79.265.174 [40 C.F.R. § 265.174).

The EPA thercvfore alleges Respondent violated Section 44-56-60 of the South Carclina Code of
Laws [Section 3005 of RCRA, 42 US.C. § 6923] for storing hazardous waste without a permit or
interim status, because Respondent filed to mect a condition of the Large Quantity Generator
Permit Exemption in S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.262.34(a)4) [40 CF R. § 262.34(u)}4)} by nut
complying with 8.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.265.15(d) [40 C.F.R. § 265.15(d)].

At the time of the CEl, the Inspectors observed numerous Satellite Accumulation Containers that
were not marked with the words “Hazardous Waste” or with other words that identified the
contents of the contamers. These unmarked Satellite Accumulation Containers included:

a. One (1) 55-galion coniainer located in the Aerosol Can Filling Area, which was being
used to collect waste or spent paint.

b. Four (4} 55-gallon containers located in the Mixing Tank Area, which were being
used to collect Dirty Wash as # was being generated,

¢. Several S-pallon containers located in the Quality Controt/R&D Lab, which were
being used to collect waste solvent and/or spent paint.

The EF A therefore alleges Respondent violated Section 44-56-80 of the South Caraling Code of
Laws [Section 3005 of RURA, 42 11.3.C. § 6925] for storing hazardous waste without a permit or
wnterim status, because Respondent failed to meet a condition for exemption from the
requirement 10 obtain a permit or interim status by not complying with 8.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-
74.262 34(cX 131} [40 CF.R. § 262 34(c){ I i)k

At the time of the CEL the Inspectors observed that the following Sateflite Accumulation
Containers were open o the atmosphere:

a. Three (3} 5-gallon Satellite Accumulation Containers in the Facility’s Aerosol Can
Filling Area were open to the atmosphere.
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63.

H5.

66,

67,

03,

&9,

. Four {4) 55.gallon Satellite Accumulation Cuntainers in the Facility’s Mixing Tank
Area were open to the atmosphere,

The EPA therefore alleges Respondent violated Section 44-56-60 of the South Carolina Code of
Laws [Section 3005 of RCRA, 42 U.8.C, § 6925] for storing hazardous waste without & permit or
irterim stotus, because Respondent failed to meet a condifion for exemption from the
requirement to ohiain & permit or interim status provided in 5.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61~

TFO262. 34 I A0 CE.R. § 202.34(cH{ 1 )1} by not complying with S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-
70.265.173a)y MO CF R § 265173 ().

At the time of the CEl, Respondent had not made a hazardous wagte determination on certain
solid wastes, including two {2) dirty or spent mop heads in a solid waste container located inside
the Shipping/Rocciving Area and one huadred fourteen (1 14) 33G-gallon plastic totes containing
Wash Water located at the rear of the Facility's property

The EPA therefore alleges that Respondent is in violation of S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.262.11
[40 C.F.R. § 262.11] by failing to make a hazardous waste determination on solid waste
generated at its Facility.

At the time of the CEL the Inspectors reviewed Respondent’s fraining documentation, which
failed to confirm or document that introductory and annual training had been conducted. The
Respondent failed to ensure that its employee training program was directed by & person with
current and up-to-date training centification to train others in hazardous waste management
procedares, Respondent failed to provide training to all the required personnel who handle or
manage hazardous waste at the Facility,

The EPA. therefore alleges Respondent violated Section 44-56-60 of the South Carclina Code of
Laws [Section 3003 of RCRA, 42 U.8.C. § 6925] for storing hazardous waste without a permit or
interim status, bocause Respondent fatled to meet a condition of the Large Quantity Generator
Permit Exemption in S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.262 34(a)(4) [40 C.F.R. § 262.34(a)(4)] by not
complying with 8.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.265.16 [40 C.F.R. § 265.16].

At the time of the CEL the Inspectors reviewed the Respondent’s Contingency Plan, titled
“Sumter Coatings, Inc., Disaster Plan,” dated October 12, 2004, The Contingency Plan did not
list the Facility’s Primary Emergency Coordinator and Secondary Emergency Coordinator or
include addresses or telephone numbers of current employees qualified to act as emergency
coordinators. The Contingency Plan did not contain docamentation or correspondence relative to
Respondent’s arrangements and agreements with emergency responders and local hospitals

The EPA therefore alleges Respondent viclated Section 44-56-60 of the South Carcling Code of
Laws [Section 3005 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C, § 6925] for storing hazardous waste without a permit or
interim status, because Respondent failed to meet a condition of the Large Quantity Generator
Pormut Exemption in 8.C. Code Ann, Regs, 61-79.262.34(a)4) [40 CF.R. § 262 34(a){4)] by not
complying with 8.C, Code Ann. Regs. 61-70265.52 [40 C.F.R. § 265.52],

The EPA therefore alleges Respondent vinlated Section 44-56-60 of the South Carclina Code of
Laws [Section 3003 of RCRA, 42 U S.C. § 6925] for storing hazardous waste without a permsit or
interim status, because Respondent failed to meet a condition of the Large Guantity Generator
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Permit Exerption in 8.C. Code Ann, Regs. 1-79.262.34(a)(4) {40 C.F.R. § 262.34a)(4}] by not
complying with 5.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61.79.265.37 [40 C.F.R. § 265.37].

The EPA therefore alleges Respondent violated Section 44.56-60 of the South Carolina Code of
Laws ISection 3005 of RCRA, 42 US.C. § 6925] for storing hazardous waste without a permit or
inferirn status, because Respondent failed to meet a condition of the Large Quantity Generator
Permit Exemption in $.C. Code Ann, Regs. 61-79.262.34(aX4) [40 C.F.R. § 262.34(a¥4)] by not
complying with 8.C, Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.265.53 {40 C.F R, § 265.531.

V. TERMS OF AGREEMENT

Rased on the foregoing Preliminary Statements, Allegations and Dieterminations, the parties agree ta the
following:

TE

Fr-"r

73.

74.

73.

76.

TR.

749

80.

£1.

For the purposes of this CA/FO, Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations set out in the
above paragraphs pursuant to Section 3008 of RCRA. 42 .8.C. § 6928,

Respondent neither admits nor denies the factual allegations and determinations sef out in this
CA/FQO.

Respondent waives any right to contest the allegations and its right o appeal the proposed Final
Order accompanying the Consent Agreement,

Respondent wailves its right fo challenge the validity of this CA/F(O and the settiement of the
matters addressed in this CA/FO based on any issue related to the Paperwork Reduction Act.

Respondent waives any right if may have pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.8 to be present during any
discussions with, or to be served with and reply to, any memorandum or communication
addressed to EPA officials where the purpose of such discussion, memorandum, or
communication is to persuade such official 1o accept and issue this CA/FO.

The parties agree that the settlement of this matter is in the public interest and that this CA/FO is
consistent with the applicable requirements of RCRA.

Respondent, by signing this CA/TO, certifics that Respondent is currently in compliance with
RCRA and the authorized South Carclina hazardous waste program,

The parties agree that compliance with the terms of this CA/FO shall resolve the violations
allegad and the facts stipulated to in this CA/FQ.

Each party will pay its own costs and attorney’s fees.
VL WORK TO BE PERFORMED

Respondent shall develop a personnel training program consistent with the requirements
deseribed in 3.C. Code Ann, Regs, §1-79.265.16 (40 C.F.R. § 265.16]. Respondent shall also
develop a schedule for implementation of the personnel training program and shall identify
which Facility employees require (raining,
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3.

& & 4 & B & » »

Within 60 days of the effective date of this CA/FQG, Respondent shall submit to the EPA a
certification signed by Respondent’s representative, which states as follows:

“I eertify under penalty of law that Sumider Coatings, Inc. is now in compliance with the training
requirements of 8.C, Code Anp. Regs. 61-79.265,15 {40 C.F.R. § 265.16]. Specifically, [ certify
under penalty of law that Sumter Coatings, Inc. has deoveloped a personnel training program; that
it has developed a schedule for implementation of the personnel fraining program; and that it has
implemented an employee training program directed by 4 person with current and up-to-date
training certification to train others in hazardous waste management procedures.”

This certification shall be sent to the EP'A care of Larry Lamberth at the address below:

Lasry L. Lamberth, Chief

South Section, RCRA & OPA Enforcement and Compliance Branch
RCRA Dhvisten

U.S. EPA - Region 4

&1 Forsyth Street, S.W.

Atlanta, Georgia 30303-8960

VIL PAYMENT OF CIVIL PENALTY

Respondent consents fo the payment of a civil penalty in the amount of FIFTY-FIVE
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($55,000.00), plus interest of 1.00% per annum, which is to be paid in
accordance with the following schedule:

$6,933.23 within thirty (30) calendar days of the effective date of this CA/FO
$6,935.23 on or before April 15,2012

$6,935.23 on or before July 15,2012

$6,935.23 un or before October 15, 2012

£6,935.23 an or before January 15, 2013

$6,935.23 en ur before April 15, 2013

$6,935.23 on ot before July 15, 2013

$6,935.23 on or betore October 15, 2013

If Respondent fails (o make a scheduled payment for 30 days after the dus date, all subsequent payments
beeonme immediately due and payable on the 31st day from such due date,

84,

Payment shall be made by cashier’s check, certified check, by electronic funds transfer (EFT), or
by Automated Clearhouse ({ACH) (alse known as REX of remittance express). If paying by
check, the check shall be payable to: Treasurer, United States of America, and the Pacifity
name and docket oumber for this matter shall be referenced on the face of the check. H
Respondent sends payment by the U.S. Postal Service, the payment shall be addressed to:
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United States Environmental Protection Agency
Fines and Penalties

Cincinnati Finance Center

2.3, Box 970077

St. Louis, Missouri 63197-9000

If Respondent sends payment by non-U.S. Postal express mail delivery, the payment shall
be sent to!

LS. Bank

Government Lockbox 979077
LS. EPA Fines & Penalties
16035 Convention Plaza |
SL-MO-C2-GL

St. Louis, Misgsouri 83101
{114) 418-1028

H paying by EFT, Respondent shall transfer the payment to:

Federal Rescrve Bank of New York

ABA: (21030004

Agcount Number: 68010727

SWIFT address: FRNYUS33

33 Liberty Street

New York New York 10045

Ficld Tag 4200 of the Fedwire message should read:
“D 68010727 Environmental Protection Agency”

If payiog by ACH, Respondent shall remit payment to:

PNC Bank

ABA: 051036706

Account Number: 310006

CTX Format Transaction Code 22 ~ checking
Environmental Protection Agency

808 17" Street NW

Washington, D.C. 20074

Contact; Jesse White, {301) 887-6348

85.  Respondent shall submit a copy of each payment to the following addresses:
Regional Hearing Clerk
US. BEPA - Regton 4

61 Forsyth Street, S.W,
Atlanta, Georgia 30303-8960
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87,

28,

89,

0.

And 1o

Larry L. Lamberth, Chief

South Sextion, RCRA & OPA Enforcement and Compliance Branch
RCRA Division

LL8 EPA - Region 4

&1 Forsyth Street, S.W.

Atianta, Georgia 30303-8960

If Respondent fatls to remit the civil penalty as agreed to herein, the EPA is required to assess
intorest and penalties on debis owed to the United States and 2 charge to cover the costs of
processing and handling the delinquent claim. Interest, at the statutory judgment rate provided
for in 31 U.5.C. § 3717, will therefore begin to acerue on the civil penaity if not paid within 30
calendar days after the effective date of this Consent Agreement. Pursuant to 31 U.S.C, § 3717,
Respondent must pay the following amounts on any amount overdue:

3, Interest. Any unpaid portion of a civil penalty or stipulated penalty must bear interest
at the rate established by the Secretary of the Treasury pursuant to 31 U8 .C,
§ 3717{(a)1}). (nterest will therefore begin to acorue on a civit penalty or stipulated
penalty if it is not psid by the last date required, interest will be assessed at the rate of
the United States Treasury tax and loan rate in accordance with 4 CF.R. § 102.13¢).

b, Monthly Handling Charge. Respondent must pay a late payment handling ¢harge of
fifteen dollars ($15.00) on any late payment, with an additional charge of fifteen
dollars (315.00) for each subscquent thirty (30) calendar-day period over which an
unpard balance remams,

¢. Non-Payment Penalty, On any portion of a civil penalty or a stipulated penalty more
than nincty {90) calendar days past due, Respondent must pay a non-payment penalty
of six percent (6%) per annum, which will accrue from the date the penalty payment
becamc due and is not paid. This nong-payment is in addition 1o charges which accrue
ot may accrue under subparagraphs {a) and (b}.

Penalties paid pursuant to this CA/FQ zre not deductible for federal purposes under 26 U.S.C.
§ 162(1).

YIL PARTIES BOUND

This CA/FO shall be binding on Respondent and s successors and assigns. Respondent shail
cause its otficers, directors, employees, agents, and all persons, including independemt
contractors, contractors, and consultants acting under or for Respondent, to comply with the
provisions hereof in connection with any activity subject to this CA/FO.

No change in ownership, parinership, corpurate or legal status relating $o the Facility will in any
way alter Respondent’s obligations and responsibilities under this CA/FQ.

The undersigned representative of Respondent hereby certifies that she or he is fully authorized
to enter into this CA/FO and to execute and legally bind Respondent to it
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92.

93,

94,

95.

D6.

97,

IX. RESERVATION OF RIGHTS

Notwithstanding any other provision of this CA/FO, an enforcement action may be brought
pursuant to Section 7003 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6973, or other statutory authority, should the
EPA find that the handling, storage, treatment, fransportation, or disposal of solid waste or
hazardous waste at Respondent’s Facility may present an immineant and substanhial
endangenment to human health or the environment.

Complainant reserves the right to take enforcement action against Respondent for any future
violations of RCRA and the implementing regulations and to enforee the terms and conditions of
this CA/FO,

Except as expressly provided herein, nothing in this CA/FO shall constitute or be construed as a
release from any civil or criminal claim, cavse of action, or demand in law or equity for any
liability Respomdent may have arising out of, or relating in any way to, the transportation,
release, or disposal of any hazardous constituents, hazardous substances, hazardous wastes,
potlutants, or contaminants found at, faken fo, or taken from Respondent’s Facility.

This CA/FO may be amended or modified only by written agreement executed by both the EPA
and Respondent.

X, OTHER APPLICABLE LAWS

All actions required to be taken pursuant to this CA/FO shall be undertaken in accordance with
the requirements of all applicable local, state, and Federal Yaws and regulations. Respondent shall
obtain or cause its representatives to obtain all permits and approvals necessary under such laws
and regulations.

X1 SERVICE QOF DOCUMENTS

A copy of any documents that Respondent files in this action shall be sent to the following
attorney who represenfs BEPA i this matter and who is authorized to receive service tor EPA in
this proceeding:

Nacha Dixit

Associate Regional Counsel

Office of RCRA, OPA and UST Legal Support
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 4
61 Forsyth Street, S W.

Atlanta, Georgin 30303-80960

{404} 362.9544

A copy of any documents that Complainant files in this action shall be sent (o the following
individual who represents Respondent in this matter and who is authorized to receive service for
Respondent in this proceeding:
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Buarry M. Revnolds

Chief Financial Officer

Sumter Coatings, Inc.

2410 Highway 15 South

Sumter, South Caroling 29150-9696
(803) 481-3400 ext 14

XIL SEVERABILITY

98, It is the intent of the partics that the provisions of this CA/FO are severable. If any provision or
authority of this CA/FO or the application of this CA/FO to any party or circumstances is held by
any judicial or administrative authority to be invalid or unenforceable, the application of such
provisions to other parties or circumstances and the remainder of the CA/FQ shall remain in
torce and shall not be atfected thereby.

XIIL EFFECTIVE DATE

9%, The effective date of this CA/FO shall be the dale on which the CA/F(O 15 filed with the Regional
Hearing Clerk,

In the matter of Sumter Couting, Incorporation, Docket No. RCRA-04-2012-4001(b):

AGREED AND CONSENTED TO:

Samter Coating, Inc.,

v V4 7
A_'%Zﬁfi:y HE /ydc’.&&% Dated ﬂm 5/ Eef Lo

Barry M. Reynolds
Chief Financial Officer
Sumter Coatings, Inc.

United States Environmental Protection Ageney

/
o GBULADPL o 21181

César AL Zapata, Clzzf
RCRA and OPA Enforcement and Coropliance Branch
RCRA Division
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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

REGION 4

IN THE MATTER OF: } DOCKET NO.: RCRA-04-2012-400 (b

)
Sumter Coatings Incorporaied 3
2410 Highway 15 South } Proceeding Under Section 3008{a) of the
Sumter, Seuth Carclina 29154 } Resource Conservation and Recovery Act,
EPA 2 No.: SCROO0G03848 ) 42 US.C. §6928(a)

)
Respondent }
— 1

FINAL ORDER

The foregoing Consent Agreement i8 hereby approved, ratified and incorporated by reference into this
Final Order in accordance with the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative
Assesyment of Civil Penalties and the Xevmtzon!;” ermination or Suspension of Permits, 40 CF R,

Part 22. The Respondent is hereby ORDERED to comply with all of the terms of the foregoing Consent
Agreement effective immediately upon filing of this Consent Agreement and Final Order with the
Regional Hearing Clerk. This Order disposcs of this matter purseant to 40 C.F.R. §§ 22.18 and 22,31,

4l -
BEING AGREED, IT IS SO ORDERED this _/{  dayof \:zf,é\—wg , 2012,

BY: ‘,ZJ"?M” & M

Susan B. Schub
Regional Judictal Gffteer
EPA Region 4




CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certily that { have this day filed the original and a true and correct copy of the foregoing
Consent Agreement and the attached Final Order (CA/FQ), in the Matter of Sumter Coatings Inc.,
Facility, Docket Number: RCRA-04-2012-4001(b), and have scrved the parties listed below in the

manner indicated:

Naueha Dixt

Associate Regional Counsed

Office of RCRA, OPA and UST Legal Support
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 4
61 Forsyth Street, S.W.

Atlanta, Georgia 30303-3960

Quantindra Smith

RCRA and OPA Enforcement and Compliance Branch
RCRA Division

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 4

61 Forsyth Street, 8 W,

Atlanta, Georgia 30303-8960

Barry M. Reynolds
Chiet Finaneial Officer
Sumter Coatings, Inc.
2410 Highway {5 South
Sumter, SC 20138-0696

Date: a - i ({Q “I z;)\ \‘R%%L 1 :

{(Via EPA s electronic mail)

{Via EPA’s clectronic mail)

{Via Certified Mail - Return Receipt
Requested)

H

Patricia A. Bullock

Regional Hearing Cletk

U.B. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 4
&1 Forsyth Strect, 8.W,

Atlanta, Georgia 30303.8460

{404) 562-9311



